PONTIAC

The HEART of Oakland County

PONTIAC HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
May 8, 2024, 6:00 PM
CITY HALL - 2"° FLOOR — COUNCIL CHAMBERS
47450 WOODWARD AVENUE - PONTIAC, MICHIGAN

Agenda
1. CALLTO ORDER:
2. ROLL CALL:
3. OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS:
4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:
5. PUBLIC COMMENT
6. NEW BUSINESS:
A. Application #: HDC 24-008
Applicant: Grace Center of Hope
Address: 27 Fairgrove Street
Request: Review completed work with and without HDC approval on the dwelling and
garage.
B. Application #: HDC 24-010
Applicant: Michigan Fire Restoration LLC, for Doris Medlock
Address: 156 East Iroquois Road
Request: Review completed and partial work on the dwelling without HDC approval.

7. STAFF COMMUNICATIONS:
A. Next Meeting: June 12, 2024, 6 PM
B. HDC Townhall moved to June 10, 2024, at Bowens Senior Center (6 PM — 8 PM)
C. Consumers Energy Gas Meter Locations within GM Modern Housing HD

8. ADJOURNMENT.

CITY OF PONTIAC
47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, MI 48342 | 248-758-2800 | planning@pontiac.mi.us
Mayor Tim Greimel



mailto:planning@pontiac.mi.us

P@NTIAC

The HEART of Oakland County

Tim Greimel, Mayor
Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor

CITY OF PONTIAC, MI
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES
Wednesday, April 10, 2024 - 6 pm

I. CALL TO ORDER: (6:07)

Il. ATTENDANCE
Present: Chair Rick David, Vice Chair Regina Campbell, Fernando Bales, Jim Allen,
Rachael Clark, Ken Burch

Staff Members  Paul Harang — Planner ||

A motion was made by Commissioner Burk to start the meeting. It was seconded
by Commissioner Bales.

M. OFFICIIAL COMMUNICAITONS
Planner Il Harang updated the commission on the request by the State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) to rewrite the Pontiac HDC window guidelines. SHPO
stressed the need to remove the two (2) tiered window guidelines for primary and non-
primary facades.

Commissioner Campbell requested staff to provide clarity regarding SHPOs request and
whether would this proposed change to the guidelines affect any window request on this
evening's docket.

Planner Il indicated that any requested window alteration at this evening's meeting will
not be affected by SHPO'’s request due to the fact the requests this evening focus on
repairing windows and not replacing original windows.

Minutes

A motion to approve the minutes was made by Commissioner Campbell and
seconded by Commissioner Allen.

|
CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342  Phone: 248.758.3000 * www.pontiac.mi.us




Vote

Yes 6
No 0

V. OLD BUSINESS

No old business

V. NEW BUSINESS

Case:
Applicant
Address
Request

HDC 24-006

George Howard

47 Mary Day Street

The applicant is requesting a Notice to Proceed to demolish a rear
detached two-car garage.

Staff provided the case background explaining the applicant's request to demolish a one-story two-car
garage to the rear of the property which is partially collapsed. The presentation provided pictorial
evidence from the applicant indicating the state of the garage structure. The pictures showed the garage
roof had collapsed into the structure and the structure walls were falling into the side yards and

alleyway.

The applicant stated that he has no comments relative to this request.

Commissioner David stated the case is cut and dry and requested the commission provide a motion for

case 24-006.

A Motion was made by Commissioner Burch and seconded by Commissioner Allen to approve the
Notice to Proceed for the demolition of the two-car detached garage.

Vote

Yes 6

Non 0



Case: HDC 24-005

Applicant Jimena Lopez
Address 68 Henry Clay Street
Request Notice to Proceed to demolish an ADA ramp and rear detached garage

and request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for window repair,
porch repair, and new fencing to the rear of the lot.

Staff Planner Harang provided the background for this request. The applicant is requesting a Notice to
Proceed for an ADA ramp and garage which have both been demolished without a permit or HDC
approval.

Additionally, the applicant is requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for porch repair focused on
porch columns, railings, decking, stairs, latticework, window repair throughout the dwelling, and new
wood fencing to be located to the rear of the lot. The applicant is not requesting any alteration to the
rear porch except for the installation of new porch railings.

The applicant introduced herself and stated that she recently purchased the house and was unaware the
house was located within a historic district.

Commissioner Allen asked questions regarding the type and size of the proposed porch decking to be
added to the dwelling. He indicated that the applicant should mimic the original material. He stated the
rear porch decking should be the same material, size, and width as the original porch decking on the
front porch.

The applicant indicated that she understands the commissioner's observation regarding the porch
decking and is willing to accept the request.

Commissioner David asked staff how the commission could relay their request for the decking to the
applicant.

Planner Il indicated that we can word the certificate of appropriateness stating that the new porch
decking shall mimic the original decking material in style.

Commissioner Bales stated that the decking proposed by the applicant is tongue and grove and does
mimic the original decking on the house.

Commissioner Cambell asked questions about the rear porch decking. Is the commission requiring the
applicant to replace the existing decking on the rear porch?



Commissioner Burch stated that if the applicant is not requesting to replace the rear porch decking, then
the commission should provide a recommendation stating that if the applicant wishes to replace the rear
porch decking, the commission recommends the new rear porch decking mimic the original in style, size,
and material. The same as the approved front porch decking.

The applicant indicated that she understood the recommendation and she is only proposing the rear
porch railing be replaced.

Commissioner David asked for a motion on the requests.

Staff stated that there should be two motions, one for the Notice to Proceed and a second for the
Certificate of Appropriateness.

A motion was made by Commissioner Burch for approval of porch repair, window repair, and new
fencing, but the staff Planner indicated that the motion would have to be amended because the
applicant is only requesting railings on the rear porch and not any other work.

A motion was made by Commissioner Burch and seconded by Commissioner Campbell to approve the
Notice to Proceed for the demolition of the two-car detached garage and ADA ramp. And a Certificate
of Appropriateness for window repair throughout the dwelling, the addition of 4-foot high fencing on
Palmer Street and 6-foot high fencing on the north and west property lines, and front porch repair
focused on new all material and look to mimic the original regarding columns, decking, porch ceiling,
railings, latticework, stairs, and only new railings are to be approved for the rear porch only to mimic
the new railings on the front porch.

Vote 6
Non 0

No public comment



Adjournment (8:30)

Motion made by Commissioner Campbell and seconded by Commissioner Allen.
Vote

Yes 6
No 0

Respectfully Submitted,

Paul Harang, Planner Il
Community Development Department



P@NTIAC

The HEART of Oakland County

Tim Greimel, Mayor
Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor

Application: HDC 24-010 156 E. Iroquois Road
HDC MEETING DATE: 5-8-2024

HISTORIC DISTRICT: Seminole Hills Historic District

PROPERTY OWNER: Michigan Fire Restoration, LLC for Doris Medlock

SCOPE: Review completed and existing work without HDC approval.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The applicant, Michigan Fire Restoration LLC., recently completed work without HDC approval to enclose
a rear second-story sun porch and insert six (6) replacement windows within the second floor of the
dwelling at 156 E. Iroquois Road.

Staff recommend APPROVAL of the replacement windows throughout the second floor of the dwelling
and recommend DENIAL to enclose the second-story sun porch as designed.

OVERVIEW

The applicant requests a Certificate of Appropriateness for work already completed to replace six (6)
vinyl windows within the dwelling's second story with replacement vinyl windows without muntins.
Additionally, the applicant altered the second-story sun porch by removing its windows, enclosing the
sun porch with walls, and inserting two (2) sliding vinyl windows on the south and east elevations of the
altered sun porch facades.

Figure 1 — Neighborhood Map

|
CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342  Phone: 248.758.3000 * www.pontiac.mi.us




Figure — 2 Map of Site Location

EXISTING CONDITIONS

156 E. Iroquois Street was constructed in 1930. This vernacular-style dwelling is characterized as, a 2-
story frame structure having a cross-hipped roof and a prominent front porch with an altered second-
story sun porch in a state of construction.

A detached one-story two-car garage is located at the rear of the property.

STAFF OBSERVATIONS AND RESEARCH

e The Seminole Hills Historic District was established in 1983.



e The subject property is located on the east side of East Iroquois Road bookended by Algonquin
Road and Menominee Road.

e The house and garage look to be in good condition.

Figures — 3 Dwelling 2023 Figure — 4 Dwelling 2024

Figure — 5 East Side Figure — 6 South Side Figure — 7 North Side

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW

Standards of Approval — Porch Improvement, Window Repair and Fencing

Secretary of the Interior Standards

The Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties provides 10 standards for
rehabilitating historic properties. The relevant standards for this request are #2, #5, #6, and #9.



#2 — “The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic
materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided”.

#5 — “Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that
characterize a property shall be preserved”.

#6 - “Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of
deterioration requires the replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in
design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing
features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence”.

#9 — “New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic materials
that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be
compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the
property and its environment”.

#10- “New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner
that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its
environment would be unimpaired”.

Analysis

The Secretary of the Interiors Rehabilitation Standards supports the request to replace vinyl windows
with new vinyl windows with no muntins throughout the second story of the dwelling since the
replacement windows match the old features in massing, size, and scale.

However, the removal of the second-story rear sun porch windows (see Figures 5, 6, & 7) and enclosing
this feature with vertical vinyl-sided walls with two (2) sliding vinyl windows is not compatible with the
Secretary of the Interiors rehabilitation standards. The sun porch pre-alteration was composed of many
architectural and visual qualities that have not translated into the post-alteration opaque design.

City of Pontiac Historic District Commission quidelines

The Pontiac Historic District Commission Review Guidelines provide 11 standards for the rehabilitation of
historic properties. The relevant standards for this request are #1, #3, #5, #7, and #10.

#1- “The historical or architectural value and significance of the structure or object and its relationship to
the historical value of the surrounding area”.

#3 — “The general compatibility of exterior design, setbacks, arrangement, color, texture, and materials
proposed to be used.

#5 — “Whether the applicant has avoided, where possible, the removal or alteration of any historic
building materials or distinctive architectural features or any other changes which would destroy the
original character of the affected structures”.



#6- Changes which have taken place over the course of time in the development of a structure's present
appearance which have thereby acquired a significance in their own right shall be recognized and
respected”.

#7- “ Whether the applicant, where reasonably possible, will repair rather than replace deteriorated
architectural features and where replacement is necessary, whether such replacement is as similar in
composition and texture as is possible and is based on a reasonably accurate duplication of the
architectural features”.

# 10 — Contemporary designs, materials, or methods for construction, alterations, or repair shall not be
discouraged where they are compatible with the size, color, material, and character of the affected
structure and adjacent structures.

#-11 “Whether, where reasonably possible, the proposed alteration will be done in such a manner as to
not impair the essential form and integrity of the structure in the event that such alterations are
removed in the future”.

Analysis

The Pontiac guidelines indicate the removal of existing vinyl windows with new vinyl windows with no
muntins on the primary and non-primary fagades conforms to the Pontiac Window Guidelines since the
original wood windows were removed in the past and the current windows have been replaced with like
materials.

However, the removal of the windows within the sun porch (see Figures 5, 6, & 7), to enclose this
prominent feature of the rear elevation of this structure is not consistent with the Pontiac Guidelines as
the new feature (walls) deviates from the original character of the structure. Additionally, the
articulation of the new walls is not a reasonably accurate duplication of the original architectural feature
of the sun porch. Lastly, the alteration does impair the essential form and integrity of the structure due
to the fact the proposed new walls do not provide the same basic character or articulation of the
features removed.

A. WINDOW REPLACEMENT

The City of Pontiac, Historic District Commission window replacement review guidelines state:
1. “Avoid, where possible, the removal or alteration of any historic building materials”.

2. “Where reasonably possible, will repair rather than replace deteriorated architectural features
and where replacement is necessary, whether such replacement is similar in composition and
texture and reasonably accurate duplication of the architectural feature requires repair over
replacement and replacement materials must match composition, texture and detail of original
where replacement windows with flat profiles do not meet these criteria”.



“For the Historic District Commission to approve window replacement, the applicant must
provide clear and irrefutable evidence that the windows are in such disrepair that they cannot
be repaired”.

“Primary facade window treatment authorizes the approval of work on windows under the
following conditions in order of desirability on all elevations facing street frontages”:

a. “Repair of existing windows”
b. “Replace with like”:
i. “Use of the same materials”
ii. “Matching existing configuration.”
iii. “Matching of color.”
iv. “Matching of trim detailing.”

“Non-primary elevation treatment allowances — The Historic District Commission desires these
primary fagade-quality windows on all facades, but within residential districts, the Historic
District Commission will accept replacement windows to a lower design standard than those on
the primary facade in order of desirability for non-primary facades”.

a. “Repair existing windows”
b. “Replacement with like”
i. “Use of same materials.”
ii. “Matching existing configuration.”
iii. “Matching of color.”
iv. “Matching trim details.”

c. “Replacement with modern materials with true divided lites (panes) and muntins that
match the existing profiles”.

d. “Replacement with new windows of modern materials and exterior divider grilles to
match existing window profile”.

e. “Standard replacement windows with either interior divider grilles or no divider grilles
(least desirable — for non-primary facades only)”.



Staff supports the replacement of six (6) vinyl windows on the second-floor primary and non-primary
facades with new vinyl windows without grills because the original wood windows were removed in the
past and replacement windows resemble the old feature in look and material.

B. Enclosure of the screen/sun porch with walls and windows.

The applicant has enclosed a sun porch with walls and smaller windows to enlarge the living space of the
dwelling. The applicant plans to clad the exterior walls with verticle vinyl siding.

Sleeping/ sun porches are a common trait of early twentieth-century dwellings mostly constructed on
second floors of dwellings next to bedrooms on less prominent facades, but they are significant to the
character of a structure. The evolution of this original sleeping porch into a sun porch is integral to this
building and helps define this structure.

Based on the Secretary of the Interiors Standards and Pontiac Historic Guidelines the proposed redesign
of this less prominent rear elevation feature lacks the design, arrangement, and texture that the sun
porch displayed. Additionally, the proposed verticle vinyl cladd to be affixed to the new exterior walls
impairs the essential form and integrity of the structure, due to the fact the new feature does not try to
at least mimic some of the past features in any way. Staff does not support the enclosure of this
prominent rear elevation feature.

The staff understands this portion of the dwelling is a less prominent and less visible part of the facade,
but the new feature(s) should try and mimic some parts of the pre-altered look of the sun porch based
on #6 and #9 of the Secretary of the Interior Standards and the Pontiac HDC Review Criteria #3, #5, and
#7.

Figure — 8 Proposed Siding Figure — 9 Window Double Hung



Figure — 10 Window Sliding

CONCLUSION
Staff supports the completed alterations regarding replacement vinyl windows within the dwelling.

Staff do not support enclosing a historic sun porch with walls and sliding windows which visually is
inconsistent with the historic nature of this dwelling.

Lastly, the Commission has the ability based on section 74-78 of the Municipal Code to require an owner
to restore the property to its original condition if work has been done without a permit and the
Commission finds that the work does not qualify for a certificate of appropriateness.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends APPROVAL for the following alteration to the dwelling:

1. New vinyl windows without grills on the primary and non-primary second-floor fagades of the
house.

Staff recommends DENIAL to enclose the second-story sun porch and to be clad with vertical vinyl siding.

However, staff does feel if a new design was offered which includes increased articulation of the new
walls, which was at a minimum found within the historic sun porch, staff is inclined to approve this
request based on the Commission's approval of the new design.



SAMPLE MOTIONS

SAMPLE MOTION TO APPROVE:

| move to APPROVE the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the
Secretary of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on
the primary and non-primary second-floor facades of the dwelling and enclose a second-floor sun porch
at the rear of the dwelling clad with vertical vinyl siding have sliding windows on the east and south
facades.

SAMPLE MOTION TO DENY:

| move to DENY the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the Secretary
of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on the primary
and non-primary second-floor facades of the dwelling and enclose a second-floor sun porch at the rear
of the dwelling clad with vertical vinyl siding have sliding windows on the east and south facades.

for the following reason(s):

SAMPLE MOTION TO TABLE:

| move to TABLE the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the Secretary
of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on the primary
and non-primary second-floor facades of the dwelling and enclose a second-floor sun porch at the rear
of the dwelling clad with vertical vinyl siding have sliding windows on the east and south facades for the
following reason(s):




City Use Only:

Submittal
Date:

Inspection Date:
The HEART of Gakland County

Planning Approval
Date:

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
APPLICATION

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

Completed and Signed Application.
Application Fee.

Proof of Existing Conditions. This can be a photograph or a scale drawing showing
the existing fagade of the building (materials, dimensions, material sample).

Written Description of Existing Conditions.

A scaled drawing of proposed alterat;on(s), when there is an addition and
modification to the fagade

Proposed Materials Sample. When new materials are proposed, a sample or detail
shall be provided.

Description of proposed alteration. This should include dimensions, materials, or
other detailing.

o s s N s S e A

Narrative explanation. This should explain why an alteration to the existing hIStOI‘EC
resource is necessary.

CITY OF PONTIAC PLANNING DIVISION ,
47450 Woadward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342 - 248-758-2800
planning@ pantiac.mi.us




The HEART of Dakland County

Application for Historic District

Commission
City of Pontiac

Office of Community Development
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, M1 48342

T: 248.758.2800

F: 248.758.2827

Property/Project Address: 60 Tromvess R Office Use Only
Sidwell Number: PF Number:
Date: Af( f @( 24

Instructions: Complete the application and submit it to the Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning. Received applications
will be processed and put on the next available Historic District Commission meeting. The Historie District Commission
meets the second Tuesday of the month. Incomplete applications will delay the review process.

Applicant (please print or type)

Name Hazdkaso ae Cesmwpar o~ , LU
Address DG 6D Ctoprors  Piv o

City Cpeat s Hhecs, it

State A2 s -

ZIP Code A A3,

Telephone Main: g o NG5G Celi: Py TP 16T o Fax: _—
E-Mail H-C(BUL(.—ﬂfmﬁ v L @%ﬁ%u,. v

Property Owner (please print or type)

Name Domyg I AEhlo k-

Address 1me €. Tiequs PR

Clty Fo e '

State R 2 AN

ZIP Code 24934

Telephone Main: 24w 4To . B56 Cell: Fax:
E-Mail —

Project and Property Information

Describe in detail all intended work, specifying dimensions, textures, color and materials. Provide
samples and/or brochures describing substitute materials. Include other appropriate descriptions, plans,
and/or drawings as specified below and on reverse side, (Check appropriate activity on next page.)







;% Exterior Alterations, D]Additions, D] New Construction, and/or D]Sigl_]s require;

e Scale drawings showing, all exterior elevations visible from a public street and to be affected by
intended work are required when there are:

o Any changes in dimensions, materjal, or detailing.
o Any new additions or sighs to any building.

s Consideration of signs also requires provision of’
o A sample of proposed style of lettering and colors.
o A description of frame and installation

L] Repairs:

s Any repairs using original dimensions, type of material and details would both require a scale
drawing; only a written description is needed.

] Demolition:
e State reasons for demolition
¢ State why you believe it is not feasible to put the structure in acceptable condition for reuse.

] Moving:
e State reasons for moving
¢ State proposed location

Description: -

C A
Prao Tb T V0SS | THE RELr VP poncit \WAT_Qospis

Bwcrosiey) (um ponasy K VsEy A4S A& C(a-ﬂSl:'r} A Cevvs e T

Pherbs, T lg~ Owiton DES A TD ERciara THE sadcg OO

USE 1t &< A PPRTIM.  Stomes A Srerrg suEA . THIS Zeomuet wil

TMAAE WS Gppe Wk l;ww-wa c—FFﬁqM—SW T PSS,

[

W ppe MF’QSFATJ 75 gpasmer. (2 B x "Sé» VoY L S-:L!nrmc, U 0w os

WiTH Tl NEW  FRaticag Sed@zon  WTH M Bpaps> ViYL
% Ve core <5 lgé,ttach adﬁrﬁ%mal PAZes as NeCessary)

| &W)‘“jﬂf\@ Oum@

Slgnature of Owner : Signature of Applicant

State of Michigan .
Counly of Oakland

On this E [ r}ay of . F \:;! E , AD, ZO/Z{E before mmﬂdﬂmﬁme_{l@l’fmpewom who being duly sworn, .r!a.red he/she has read

the foregoing application, by himfher sfgned and know the dpnteyts MYBY I GHNIDSDR TS e B Ixr.s'ﬂ;er awa }qrawiedge, excepf as’h f!:e matters -
~
therein stated fo bf,: Hp.a;: information and belief and 5o as 1o mo%:ﬁﬁf‘%&?;’?ggﬁgwmmj & 4 u“g‘ /J / f; {, Yiry %{j Jf/ [
Omission
At i Notmy wblic, Oakiand County, icblgm
g lnthe COitity .(f,f e N fMy Commiission Expir esb{ l’}w
Jounty of Oakland

. o “ mimission Explgs Jan
ST ‘_‘_'j'fh*Countyuipéts 1{5, 2.9_?{5










Proposed Verticle Siding for Altered Sun Porch Exterior Walls













































HDC 24-005

s o P@NTIAC

By Paul Harang
The HEART of Oakland County

Tim Greimel, Mayor
Khalfani Stephens, Deputy Mayor

Application: HDC 24-008 27 Fairgrove Street
HDC MEETING DATE: 5-8-2024

HISTORIC DISTRICT: Fairgrove Historic District

PROPERTY OWNER: Grace Gospel Fellowship

SCOPE: Review completed work with and without HDC approval.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The applicant, Grace Gospel Fellowship, obtained HDC approval in 2021 (HDC case 21-014) but did not
adhere to the scope of work in the Certificate of Appropriateness for alterations.

Additionally, the applicant completed work without a permit on the dwelling to replace windows on the
primary facade, replace wood shingles on the primary facade gable end and porch entrance pediment,
and install new garage siding, roof, and new garage doors.

Staff recommends adherence to the approved
scope of work granted in the 2021 HDC case 21-
014 for porch alterations and supports the
modifications that have already occurred
focused on the addition of new windows on the
primary facade and garage alterations.

OVERVIEW

The applicant requests a Certificate of
Appropriateness for the insertion of vinyl
windows on the primary facade without
muntin’s, new wood shingles on the roof gable
end, and porch entrance pediment on the
dwelling and garage alterations.

HDC must review the work completed on the
dwelling that does not comply with the HDC
grant issued in HDC case 21-014. Figure —1 Location Map

|
CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342  Phone: 248.758.3000 * www.pontiac.mi.us




HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

Figure — 2 Map of Site Location

EXISTING CONDITIONS

27 Fairgrove Street was constructed in 1910. This vernacular style dwelling is characterized as, a 2-1/2
story frame structure with a cross gable roof having gable end treatment on the primary facade, a
prominent front porch with modern columns, railings, stairs, decking, and modern porch skirting
latticework, the dwelling is sided with Hardie board, and having replacement vinyl windows on all
elevations.

The rear one-story detached two (2) car garage is sided with Hardie board with modern garage doors
and a replacement asphalt roof.



HDC 24-008

27 Fairgrove

By Paul Harang

STAFF OBSERVATIONS AND RESEARCH

e The Fairgrove Historic District was established in 1983.

e The subject property is located on the north side of Fairgrove Street mid-block between Edison
Street and North Saginaw Avenue.

e The house and garage look to be in excellent condition.
e City records show in 2020 & 2021 HDC issued Certificates of Appropriateness for replacement

windows on non-primary facades, replacement siding on the dwelling, porch work, and roof
replacement.

Figures — 3 &4 Photos of Dwelling & Garage, 2020

Figures 5 & 6 - Photos of Dwelling & Garage 2024



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW

Standards of Approval — Porch Improvement, Window Repair and Fencing

Secretary of the Interior Standards

The Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties provides 10 standards for
rehabilitating historic properties. The relevant standards for this request are #2, #5, #6, and #9.

#2 — “The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic
materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided”.

#5 — “Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that
characterize a property shall be preserved”.

#6 - “Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of
deterioration requires the replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in
design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing
features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence”.

#9 — “New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic materials
that characterize the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be
compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the
property and its environment.

Analysis

These standards support the requested alterations relating to the replacement of existing vinyl windows
with new vinyl windows with no muntins on the primary fagade, new wood shingles on the attic gable
end and porch entry pediment, new garage Hardie board siding, new garage roof, and new garage doors
due to the fact these are compatible with the Secretary of the Interiors rehabilitation standards relating
to visual qualities.

Additionally, relating to the 2021 Certificate of Appropriateness approved by the Commission in case
HDC-21-014, the alterations to the porch columns and knee wall do not adhere to the approved scope of
work or the Secretary of the Interior standards which focuses on mimicking or matching the new
material so that it is similar in appearance to the original features/materials removed.



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

Address: 27 FAIRGROVE 5T Parcel Mumber:
Owner: GRACE GOSPEL FELLOWSHIP Other owner properties...

£4-14-29-232-024

rlk Process Information ]Temporar)-I Structure Details |Meeting Details |Fire Prevention Details | Waterfront Details [Dimensional Information| Fence Details |5&tback Details |Mi5cel|aneous Fields

REPLACE SIDE AND REAR WINDOWS WITH WALLSIDE WINDOWS,
REPAIR FRONT PORCH DECKING , STAIRS AND SUPPORTS AS MEEDED AND MATCH EXISTING
REFLACE METAL FRONT DOOR WITH A WOOD DOOR.

PICTURE ATTACHED

Figure 7 — Image from BSA Scope of Work for HDC 22-014

City of Pontiac Historic District Commission quidelines

The Pontiac Historic District Commission Review Guidelines provide 11 standards for the rehabilitation of
historic properties. The relevant standards for this request are #3, #5, #7, and #10.

#3 — “The general compatibility of exterior design, setbacks, arrangement, color, texture, and materials
proposed to be used.

#5 — “Whether the applicant has avoided, where possible, the removal or alteration of any historic
building materials or distinctive architectural features or any other changes which would destroy the
original character of the affected structures”.

#7- “ Whether the applicant, where reasonably possible, will repair rather than replace deteriorated
architectural features and where replacement is necessary, whether such replacement is as similar in
composition and texture as is possible and is based on a reasonably accurate duplication of the
architectural features”.

# 10 — Contemporary designs, materials, or methods for construction, alterations, or repair shall not be
discouraged where they are compatible with the size, color, material, and character of the affected
structure and adjacent structures.

5

Filed As: |HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION REVIEWW | Application Date:
Process Mame: HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMI... Date Process Started:
Process Number:  PHDC21-014 Date Completed: | 10/18/2021
Status:  ADMINSTRATIVELY APPROV... [] Can expir
Basic Usage: |r.1..-',:\ ﬂ Last Status Change:  10/18/2021
Staff Contact: | | o Project:
Associated Names:
Applicant: |GRACE GOSPEL FELLOWSHIP | B[~ General Licensee: |:
General Contractor: | | ) Owner: I@
REMOVE EXISTING SIDIMG AMD REPLACE WITH HARDIE PLAMK SIDING - 6” LAP. APPROVED IN COMPLAIMNCE WITI



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

Analysis

The guidelines indicate the alteration of the existing vinyl windows with new vinyl windows with no grills
on the primary facade, new wood shingles on the roof and porch gable end and entry point, new Hardie
board siding, new garage roof, and new garage doors conform to the guidelines since the new features
are a reasonably accurate duplication of the architectural features already removed from the resource.

Additionally, relating to the 2021 Certificate of Appropriateness approved by the Commission in case
HDC-21-014, the alterations of the porch columns and knee wall do not adhere to the approved scope of
work or Pontiac Historic Guidelines which focuses on replacing or mimicking what would be removed
from the structure with new features and material similar in appearance with the materials removed.

A. WINDOW REPLACEMENT

The City of Pontiac, Historic District Commission window replacement review guidelines state:

1. “Avoid, where possible, the removal or alteration of any historic building materials”.

2. “Where reasonably possible, will repair rather than replace deteriorated architectural features
and where replacement is necessary, whether such replacement is similar in composition and
texture and reasonably accurate duplication of the architectural feature requires repair over
replacement and replacement materials must match composition, texture and detail of original
where replacement windows with flat profiles does not meet this criteria”.

3. “For the Historic District Commission to approve window replacement, the applicant must
provide clear and irrefutable evidence that the windows are in such disrepair that they cannot
be repaired”.

4. “Primary facade window treatment authorizes the approval of work on windows under the
following conditions in order of desirability on all elevations facing street frontages”:

a. “Repair of existing windows”
b. “Replace with like":
i. “Use of the same materials”
ii. “Matching existing configuration.”
iii. “Matching of color.”
iv. “Matching of trim detailing.”

5. “Non-primary elevation treatment allowances — The Historic District Commission desires these
primary facade-quality windows on all facades, but within residential districts, the Historic
District Commission will accept replacement windows to a lower design standard than those on
the primary fagade in order of desirability for non-primary facades”.

a. “Repair existing windows”
b. “Replacement with like”
i. “Use of same materials.”
ii. “Matching existing configuration.”

6




HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang
iii. “Matching of color.”
iv. “Matching trim details.”
c. “Replacement with modern materials with true divided lites (panes) and muntins that
match the existing profiles”.
d. “Replacement with new windows of modern materials and exterior divider grilles to
match existing window profile”.
e. “Standard replacement windows with either interior divider grilles or no divider grilles
(least desirable — for non-primary facades only)”.

Staff supports the replacement of vinyl windows on the primary facade with new vinyl windows without
grills because the original wood windows had been removed in the past and replaced with standard vinyl
windows.

B. Gable End Shingles

The applicant has replaced the original but deteriorated, wood shingles on the primary facade at the
attic gable end and at the pediment above the front porch entrance.

Staff supports the replacement of the deteriorated wood shingles on the dwelling due to the fact the
new feature matches the old in design, texture, and other visual qualities.

C. Garage Siding

The applicant has replaced the original wood siding on the garage facades with Hardie Board siding.
Based on the City of Pontiac Siding Replacement Guidelines. The applicant shall comply with the
following guidelines:

The Historic District Commission will authorize the approval of siding work under the following
conditions, in order of desirability:

1. Repair/ Uncovering of Existing Siding/ Shakes

2. Replacement of original historic materials with materials that match
a. Use of the same materials
b. Matching existing configuration — for example, clapboard on the first floor and cedar shakes

on the second floor

3. Replacement of original damaged materials or removal of vinyl or aluminum siding and
replacement with cement board products (like Hardie Board) that mimic the width and pattern
of the original materials



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

Staff supports the replacement of deteriorated garage siding with Hardie Board. Based on conversations
with the applicant the garage siding was deteriorated and was composed of multiple siding materials.
The use of Hardie Board was utilized to emulate the siding on the dwelling to conform to the siding
requirements of the City of Pontiac Siding Guidelines.

D. Garage Doors and Garage Roof

The applicant has added new metal garage vehicle and pedestrian doors to the structure. At the time of
alteration, the structure's vehicle door was missing its opening was boarded and the pedestrian door
was in a state of disrepair.

Staff supports the new metal doors since the original vehicle door was removed and metal pedestrian
garage doors are a common trait within the district. Additionally, the new doors are compatible with the
massing, size, and scale of the original door features.

E. Garage Roof

The applicant replaced the deteriorated asphalt shingle garage roof with dimensional asphalt shingles.
The applicant shall comply with the following guidelines:

The Historic District Commission will authorize the approval of roof repair/ replacement under the
following conditions, in order of desirability:

1. Repair of Existing Roof

2. Replace with Like (original is damaged beyond repair)
a. Use of the same materials
b. Matching existing configuration

3. When damaged beyond repair, replace with synthetic shingles or other materials that closely
resemble the appearance of original materials in color, thickness, surface finish, sheen, etc.

Staff supports the replacement of the garage roof with asphalt dimensional shingles. Based on the fact
the replacement is with “like” materials and the structure did not have any original roofing material at
the time of replacement.

F. Work Completed outside of the approved Certificate of Appropriateness

The Commission must review and provide a decision relating to the Certificate of Appropriateness issued
to the applicant for HDC 21-014. The following features deviated from the approved scope of work:

8



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

1. Porch columns
2. Porch railings

Based on a review of the Certificate of Appropriateness the applicant did not “match” or mimic the
original columns and porch knee walls with the approved scope of work granted in 2021.

The applicant replaced the original round short columns below capitals and resting on knee walls with a
longer standard 6 x 6 square wood columns between standard porch railings. Therefore, the alteration
removed the original columns and knee walls on the front porch which is out of the approved scope.

Staff does not support the deviation from the scope of work due to the fact the alterations do not
comply with the approved Certificate of Appropriateness. The Commission will have to weigh the
alterations with the completed work and decide if the “out of scope” work complies with the Secretary
of the Interior standards and the Pontiac Guidelines.

Because the new features do not mimic the pre-altered look of the structure based on #6 and #9 of the
Secretary of the Interior Standards and the Pontiac HDC Review Criteria #3, #5, and #7, staff concluded
the completed work does not comply.

Figure —7 Wood Cedar Siding Figure — 8 Hardie Board Siding



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

Figure — 9 Garage Vehicle Door Figure — 10 Garage Pedestrian Door

Figure — 11 Garage Roof Asphalt Shingles

CONCLUSION

Staff supports the completed alterations regarding
replacement windows and the replacement shingles on
the attic gable end and porch entry pediment, as well as
the alterations to the garage.

Staff do not support the divination of the approved
scope of work within the Certificate of Appropriateness
focusing on the alterations to the porch columns and porch knee walls.

Lastly, the Commission has the ability based on section 74-78 of the Municipal Code to require an
owner to restore the property to its original condition if work has been done without a permit and
the Commission finds that the work does not qualify for a certificate of appropriateness.

10



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends APPROVAL for the following alterations to the dwelling and garage:

1. New vinyl windows without grills on the primary fagade of the house.

2. New wood shingle siding on the gable ends and over the porch entrance pediment on the
house.

New Hardie Board siding on all garage facades.

New metal garage vehicle and pedestrian doors.

5. New garage roof.

Pw

Staff recommend DENIAL for the deviation from the approved Certificate of Appropriateness case HDC
21-014 regarding porch columns and railing/ knee wall.

11



HDC 24-008
27 Fairgrove
By Paul Harang

SAMPLE MOTIONS

SAMPLE MOTION TO APPROVE:

| move to APPROVE the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the
secretary of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on
the primary facade of the dwelling, new wood shingle siding on the gable ends and over the porch
entrance pediment on the dwelling, add new Hardie Board siding to the garage, new metal doors on the
garage and new garage asphalt singles.

| move to APPROVE the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the
secretary of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 for the deviation of the Certificate of
Appropriateness for HDC case 21-014 to add porch rails instead of a knee wall and 6 X 6 wood columns
instead of rounded columns on a base and under capitals on the dwelling.

SAMPLE MOTION TO DENY:

| move to DENY this request for a Certificate of Appropriateness based on the secretary of the Interiors
standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on the primary facade of
the dwelling, new wood shingle siding on the gable ends and over the porch entrance pediment on the
dwelling, add new Hardie Board siding to the garage, new metal doors on the garage and new garage
asphalt singles for the following reason(s):

I move to DENY the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the secretary
of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 for the deviation of the Certificate of Appropriateness for
HDC case 21-014 to add porch rails instead of a knee wall and 6 X 6 wood columns instead of rounded
columns on a base and under capitals on the dwelling for the following reason(s):

SAMPLE MOTION TO TABLE:

| move to TABLE this request for a Certificate of Appropriateness based on the secretary of the Interiors
standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 9 to install new vinyl windows without muntins on the primary facade of
the dwelling, new wood shingle siding on the gable ends and over the porch entrance pediment on the
dwelling, add new Hardie Board siding to the garage, new metal doors on the garage and new garage
asphalt singles for the following reason(s):

12



HDC 24-008

27 Fairgrove

By Paul Harang

| move to TABLE the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for this request based on the secretary
of the Interiors standards #2, #5, #6, and #9 for the deviation of the Certificate of Appropriateness for
HDC case 21-014 to add porch rails instead of a knee wall and 6 X 6 wood columns instead of rounded
columns on a base and under capitals on the dwelling.

13






















































	HDC Agenda May 2024
	HDC Minutes April 2024
	HDC  24-010 156 W Iroquois EXTERIOR CHANGES
	156 e iroquois application
	application 24-010 156 E iroquis
	156 Iroquois Exterior Sketches
	156 iroquois narative porchc Window Spec  Summary
	HDC 24-008 27 Fairgrove EXTERIOR CHANGES
	Application HDC 24-008 27 fairgrove
	PHD 21-014 Scope of Work 27 Fairgrove
	Historic District Mailing Back Poster 
	Historic District Social Media Poster 
	Historic District Mailing Front Poster 



